
1

Notice of Hearing
Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 14 March 2018

Website: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk

A meeting of the Licensing Panel
will be held on 
Monday 26 March 2018 at 2.30 pm
in Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, 
Milton, Abingdon OX14 4SB

to consider the following matter:
the relevant representations received in connection with an application for:

A variation of a premises licence for The Great Hall, Fair Mile, 
Cholsey, Wallingford, OX10 9GW
under the Licensing Act 2003.

The report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, information submitted by the 
licence holder, and copies of the relevant representations are attached to this notice and 
are available to view on the council’s website.

Any three members of the of the council’s Licensing Acts Committee can form the 
Licensing Panel. The membership is expected to be:

Nigel Champken-Woods David Dodds Bill Service

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://ww2.southoxon.gov.uk/gw/webpub?merge=CommDocList&action=Library.Search&Library.queryField=SUBJECT&Library.queryId=sodc.docaccesspo1.public&Library.queryText=LicensingPanel_130911&Library.queryCount=50


2

1 Declarations of interest  

2 Procedure  (Pages 3 - 8)

3 Application for a variation of a premises licence for The Great 
Hall, Fair Mile, Cholsey, Wallingford, OX10 9GW  (Pages 9 - 47)

To consider the report of the head of housing and environment (attached).

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING ACTS PANEL – PROTOCOL AND PROCEDURE

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This protocol and procedure has been adopted by the council’s Licensing Acts 
Committee in order to ensure that all meetings are carried out in accordance with the law 
and all parties receive a fair hearing. 

1.2 For the purposes of this protocol and procedure the following terms have the meanings 
assigned to them:-

(a) “the Act” means the Licensing Act 2003.
(b) “the parties” means all persons to whom a notice of hearing has been given.
(c) “the regulations” means the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 as 

amended.
(d) “exempt information” means those categories of information set out in Schedule 

12A to the Local Government Act 1972 as amended.

1.3 This document has been prepared having regard to the statutory provisions contained in 
the Act, the Regulations, the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, 
Media and Sport (latest version issued June 2013) and the LACORS Guidance for Local 
Authorities dated March 2005.

2.0 The licensing objectives and statement of policy

2.1 The Act sets out four licensing objectives which are fundamental to the decision making 
of the panel.  The licensing objectives are follows:-

(a) The prevention of crime and disorder.
(b) Public safety.
(c) The prevention of public nuisance.
(d) The protection of children from harm.

2.2 Any application or licensing matter which comes before a panel will be treated on its own 
merits having regard to the following issues:-

(a) The promotion of the four licensing objectives.
(b) The council’s statement of licensing policy.
(c) The most recent guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and 

Sport.
(d) The merits of the application and the representations received from the parties.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



3.0 Before the hearing

3.1 The council has a duty to hold a hearing within a timescale specified in the regulations.  
In most cases the timescale is 20 working days calculated from the end of the relevant 
representation period.  However, there are other cases where the timescale is shorter 
ranging from between 5 and 10 working days depending on the nature of the case in 
question.  The council will ensure adequate notice is given to the parties involved.

3.2 The council will send all parties a notice of hearing giving details of the date, time and 
venue for the panel meeting.  This notice will normally be sent giving at least 10 working 
days’ notice of the hearing, although in some cases a shorter notice period is required.

3.3 The council will use its reasonable endeavours to email the notice to any of the parties 
who consent to that approach but shall also send the notice and the accompanying 
documents by first class post in every case.

3.4 The notice of hearing will normally be accompanied by an agenda, together with a report 
from the licensing officer which shall set out the details of the case.  

3.5 The sub-committee will take into account the party response forms when considering the 
procedure to be adopted at the hearing. 

4.0 The panel

4.1 The membership of the panel has been determined as set out in the decision of the 
Licensing Acts Committee.

4.2 Members will only be permitted to take part in determining a case if they have been 
present throughout the whole hearing and have no conflict of interest in the matter.

4.3 The quorum is 3 members who shall determine any issue by a simple majority of votes.  
If the votes are tied the chairman of the panel will have a second or casting vote.

5.0 Hearing - general principles

5.1 The parties have the right to attend the hearing and to be assisted or represented by any 
person (whether legally qualified or not) such as a relative, friend, their solicitor or 
counsel.

5.2 The parties will be entitled to address the members of the panel at the hearing and 
question any other party if given permission to do so by the panel.  They will also be able 
to provide further information in support of their case on any points upon which the 
council has sought further clarification or explanation. 

5.3 Each party will have a maximum of 20 minutes to make their representations and present 
their evidence unless there are some exceptional reasons to justify a longer period.

5.4 There is a presumption that any hearing will take place in public so that the sub-
committee’s decisions can be made in an accountable and transparent way, but on 
occasions it may be necessary to exclude the public and members of the press if the 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



sub-committee considers that it is in the public interest to do so.  Members will consider 
that matter having regard to any exempt information which may need to be disclosed by 
any of the parties during the hearing.

5.5 If any party does not attend or are not represented at the hearing then the panel may 
take the following action:

(a) When a party informs the council that they do not intend to attend or be 
represented at the hearing the panel will proceed in their absence unless it is in 
the public interest to adjourn the hearing to a new date.  For example, if the 
council is informed a person cannot attend due to unforeseen personal 
circumstances such as illness, then the panel may adjourn the hearing to a new 
date.

(b) If any party fails to inform the council whether they intend to attend or be 
represented at a hearing then it is likely the panel will proceed in their absence 
unless there are exceptional circumstances making it necessary in the public 
interest to adjourn the hearing to a new date.

(c) Where the hearing proceeds in the absence of any party the panel will consider 
their representations or documentation contained in the list of documents.

5.6 If for any reason the hearing is adjourned to a new date the council will notify all parties 
of the new date, time and place of the adjourned hearing.

5.7 Late representations and evidence will only be considered by the panel with the 
agreement of all the parties present at the hearing.

5.8 The panel has the right to exclude any parties disrupting the hearing but will allow any 
excluded party to submit any information in writing which they would have given to the 
panel had they not been required to leave.

5.9 The panel will be assisted and advised by one of the council’s solicitors or legal advisers 
and a democratic services officer will also be present to assist the members in providing 
a record of proceedings.  

5.10 The licensing officer from the council will also be at the hearing to present a report and to 
offer advice and expertise based upon their professional knowledge of the application but 
without making any recommendations.    

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



6.0 Hearing procedure

6.1 Election of chair - the panel will elect a chairman for the hearing (if not previously 
appointed) in the presence of the parties.

6.2 Welcome and introductions - the chairman will open the meeting, introducing the 
members of the panel and officers to the parties and then invite the parties or their 
respective representatives to introduce themselves.

6.3 Outlining the procedure – the chairman will then outline the nature of the application, the 
decisions to be taken and the procedure to be followed.  If there are any preliminary 
issues made in any of the party response forms, those issues will be addressed and 
determined at this stage.

6.4 Licensing officer’s report – the hearing will begin with a presentation by the council’s 
licensing officer who will outline the application, any relevant representations received 
and deal with all policy and statutory guidance matters by reference to their report.  
members of the panel may then ask any relevant questions of the licensing officer.

6.5 The parties’ cases – the chairman will invite the respective parties to present their cases 
in the following order:

(a) the applicant

(b) each responsible authority

(c) each interested party

(d) the licence holder if not the applicant

and on each occasion the cases will be dealt with in the following way:

(a) the relevant party shall address the panel and present any witnesses within the 
time limit allowed by the panel

(b) members can then ask relevant questions

(c) the licensing officer may also ask relevant questions through the chairman of the 
panel

(d) although there is no intention to allow parties to cross-examine others, they may 
ask relevant questions through the chairman.

6.6 Final submissions – each party will be given the opportunity by the chairman to 
summarise their respective cases if they wish for a maximum period of 5 minutes each.  
Final submission shall be made in the following order:

(a) interested parties

(b) each responsible authority
Page 6

Agenda Item 2



(c) the applicant

(d) the licence holder if not the applicant

6.7 Chairman’s final comments – the chair will invite the parties to state they have had a fair 
opportunity to put their respective cases.  The panel will deal with any issues arising prior 
to retiring to make their decision.

7.0 After the hearing

7.1 At the end of the hearing, the panel will retire or ask everyone apart from its legal adviser 
and democratic services officer to leave the room while the panel considers its decision.  
The panel may call upon its solicitor or legal adviser, and the democratic services officer, 
if it needs legal or procedural advice.

7.2 If the panel wishes to clarify any point which arose during the hearing, it will recall all 
parties even if only one is asked for further explanation.

7.3 When the panel has made its decision, members will return to the room or invite the 
parties back into the room and the chairman will report the decision of the panel to those 
present.

7.4 The chairman will also inform them that a written decision notice explaining the reasons 
behind their decision will be sent to all parties.  The decision notices shall be in a form or 
substantially in the form as set out at the end of this document.

8.0 Record of proceedings

8.1 The democratic services officer shall prepare a record of the panel’s proceedings which 
shall be signed by the chairman of the panel.

8.2 The record of the proceedings shall be retained by the council for a period of at least 6 
years from the date of determination or the disposal of any appeal.

Updated December 2016 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Licensing Acts Panel

Report of Head of Housing and Environment
Author: Shankar Sivashankar. Interim Team Leader
Telephone: 01235 422561
Textphone: 18001 012354
E-mail: Shankar.sivashankar@southandvale.gov.uk
To: Licensing Acts Panel
DATE: 26 March 2018

Application for a variation of a 
premises licence for The Great Hall, 
Fair Mile, Cholsey, Wallingford, OX10 
9GW

Reason for Report

The application to a vary a premises licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003 to 
The Great Hall, Fair Mile, Cholsey, Wallingford, OX10 9GW has attracted 
representations from one Responsible Authority and four Other Persons.  As per the 
Council’s Licensing Policy and delegation of Licensing functions, all applications 
with unresolved representations are to be dealt with by the Licensing Panel.

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the facts and relevant unresolved representations received in respect of 
an application for a variation of a premises licence for The Great Hall to the 
Licensing Acts Panel in order that it can determine the application under Section 35 
of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.0 Strategic Objectives 

2.1 The relevant strategic objective is that of ‘building the local economy’. The 
relevant corporate priority is ‘maintain low levels of crime and anti-social 
behaviour’. 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



3.0 Background

3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (‘the Act’) established a single integrated scheme for 
licensing premises which are used for the supply of alcohol, regulated 
entertainment, late night refreshment or permission to carry on some or all of 
these activities. In the Act these activities are referred to collectively as the 
‘licensable activities’.

3.2 Any assessment of licensable activities must consider and promote the four 
licensing objectives:

 the prevention of crime and disorder

 public safety

 the prevention of public nuisance

 the protection of children from harm

3.3 An application for a licence (or variation) where representations have been 
resolved will be granted by the licensing officer under delegated powers, but in the 
event of relevant representations being received and remaining unresolved, the 
application is then referred to the Licensing Acts Panel for determination.

3.4 An application has been made by Cholsey Community Development Trust to vary 
a premises licence in respect of The Great Hall, Fair Mile, Cholsey, Wallingford, 
OX10 9GW (‘the Premises’). The current licence and the application are attached 
to this report. (Appendix 1). 

3.5 The Premises currently has the benefit of a Premises Licence which was granted    
in 2016.  The current Premises Licence authorises Sale of Alcohol and Films to be 
shown at the premises.  The current licence also erroneously states Plays, 
Recorded Music, Live Music and Performance of Dance as authorised activities, 
and these will be removed to reflect the correct position as to premises licensed 
for Sale of Alcohol.

3.6 The application (as amended) in front of the Panel seeks to vary the licence as 
follows:

Sale of Alcohol Hours Open to Public

Current Hours Application Current Hours Application

Sunday 1000-2130 No change 1000-2130 0900-2230
Monday 1000-2200 No change 1000-2200 0900-2230
Tuesday 1000-2200 No change 1000-2200 0900-2230
Wednesday 1000-2200 No change 1000-2200 0900-2230
Thursday 1000-2200 1000-2230 1000-2200 0900-2230
Friday 1000-2230 1000-2300 1000-2230 0900-2300
Saturday 1000-2230 1000-2300 1000-2230 0900-2300

The additional condition relating to Regulated Entertainment requested by 
Environmental Protection has been withdrawn as Regulated Entertainment is not 
a licensable activity on this licence.

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



3.7 No representation has been received from Thames Valley Police.

3.8 A representation has also been received from Environmental Protection asking for 
certain amendments and conditions to be added to the licence. (Appendix 
2)These conditions have been agreed by the applicant. (Appendix 3)

3.9 Details of representations of Any Other Persons are attached. (Appendix 4)

Options

4.1 In determining the application the authority must give weight to:

 representations received from Responsible Authorities

 relevant representations received from other persons

 the Secretary of State’s guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003

 the council’s statement of Licensing Policy and

 the steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives

4.2 Having considered those relevant matters, the Licensing Panel is required to 
take such of following steps (if any) as it considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives –

a. To modify the conditions of the licence (only in case of grant of this variation 
as any conditions will only have effect on the varied part of the licence)

b. To reject the whole or part of the application;

and for this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them are 
altered or omitted or any new condition(s) added.

It should be noted with all options that –
 Clear reasons should be given for the decision.
 Any additional or modified conditions should be practical and enforceable.
 The applicant and any person who made relevant representations would have 

the right of appeal to a magistrates’ court on one of the grounds provided in 
Schedule 5 to the Licensing Act 2003.

Financial Implications

5.1 Should the applicant or any other person wish to appeal against a decision of the 
council, they may do so to the Magistrates’ Court. The council would incur costs 
should this occur, although the court may decide to award costs if the council’s 
decision was upheld.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



Legal Implications

6.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 requires public bodies to ensure everything they do is 
compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public authority to 
act incompatibly with those rights. When determining whether to grant the 
application, the Panel will be aware of human rights considerations, specifically 
Part 1 Article 6, the right to a fair trial, Part 2 and Article 8, the right to respect for 
private and family life for those making representations.

6.2 The hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of natural justice.

6.3 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states, ‘without prejudice to any 
other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each authority to exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of those functions on, and the 
need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area’.

6.4 Under Schedule 5, Part 1 of the Licensing Act 2003, any person aggrieved by the 
decision in respect of the application may appeal to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 
days of the date of the decision.

Background Papers

None.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



Page 13

Agenda Item 3



Page 14

Agenda Item 3



Page 15

Agenda Item 3



Page 16

Agenda Item 3



Page 17

Agenda Item 3



Page 18

Agenda Item 3



Page 19

Agenda Item 3



Page 20

Agenda Item 3



Page 21

Agenda Item 3



Page 22

Agenda Item 3



Page 23

Agenda Item 3



Page 24

Agenda Item 3



Page 25

Agenda Item 3



Page 26

Agenda Item 3



Page 27

Agenda Item 3



Page 28

Agenda Item 3



Page 29

Agenda Item 3



Page 30

Agenda Item 3



Memo 

 
To: Licensing 

FAO: Mr A Thompson and Mr S Sivashankar 

Address ref: AD: 81559 

Date: 23/02/2018 

From: Environmental Protection 

Ask for: Stuart Roberts 

Our ref: 150318 

Extension: 2110 

 
 

 

Re: Full Variation of Premises Licence  
At:  The Great Hall, Fair Mile, Cholsey, WALLINGFORD, OX10 9GW 
 
 
Thank you for consulting Environmental Protection regarding the above application to 
vary a premises licence.  
  
I have reviewed the application, referred to our records and historical complaints and 
would like to make representation against the application.  I have concerns that due 
to the rural residential location of the premises the proposed variations detailed in 
Section L of the application may have an adverse impact of the neighbouring 
residential properties and could potentially contribute to being a statutory nuisance.  
  
Specifically historical noise complaints have referred to music noise originating from 
the premises during and after licensable hours and breakout noise originating from 
members of the public leaving the premises.  I understand that previous works 
carried out to address sound levels from music have contributed to the significant 
decline in complaints however given the quiet, rural location as well as the high 
density of residential properties surrounding the Great Hall, I believe that varying the 
opening times later may result in further noise complaints.  If the premises closes at 
23:30, there is probably going to be noise from people leaving the venue going on 
until midnight which has the potential to adversely affect these surrounding 
residents. I would therefore recommend the following hours of use, and would also 
retain the existing licence conditions and add following condition in order to manage 
the noise from the premises:  
 
Proposed Hours of Use:  
Proposed hours of use to be limited to:  
09:00 – 22:30 Sunday – Thursday  
09:00 – 23:00 Friday & Saturday  
  
Proposed conditions:  
Boundary Noise Checks:  
At least twice during each occasion when regulated entertainment take place the 
person in charge shall undertake an assessment of noise emanating from the 
premises as a result of regulated entertainment at the boundary of the site nearest 
residential premises. If the assessment indicates a potential problem exists arising Page 31

Agenda Item 3



 

from excessive noise levels then immediate action must be taken to reduce the noise 
level and a further check conducted to ensure that levels have been sufficiently 
reduced.  A written record shall be kept of each noise assessment and of any 
remedial action taken.  Records of such checks shall be made available to the 
Licensing Authority for inspection at any reasonable time.  
  
If the applicant agrees to the proposed licensing hours and the inclusion of the 
additional condition onto the licence, it is likely that this licence can be varied without 
instigating further noise complaints, and I can remove my objection to the proposed 
variation.  
  
If you have any queries regarding the above then please do not hesitate to contact 
me.  I am also prepared to meet the applicant(s) at the premises if necessary to 
discuss this further.  
  
  
Best regards  
  
  
  
  
Stuart Roberts  
Assistant Environmental Health Officer  

Page 32

Agenda Item 3



From: Cholsey CDT <cholseycdt@gmail.com> 
Sent: 06 March 2018 10:18 
To: Roberts, Stuart 
Cc: Shankar Sivashankar; Val Bolt; sue jeffs; Alan Newell 
Subject: Re: Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence 
  
Dear Stuart 
 
The CCDT held a Board meeting last night in which Environmental Protection's 
representation to our application to vary the premises licence was discussed. 
 
I'm happy to confirm that the Board agreed to the inclusion of the following conditions: 
 
Hours of Use: 
09:00 - 22:30 Sunday - Thursday 
09:00 - 23:00 Friday & Saturday 
 
Boundary Noise Checks: 
On each occasion regulated entertainment is taking place in the Great Hall, we agree to 
carry out 2 sound checks on our boundary (nearest residential dwellings) and record the 
reading and any action taken in a file that can be viewed in the office. Should those 
readings show excessive noise levels, we will take the appropriate steps to reduce the 
noise level and take a further reading to check and record action taken. 
 
In light of the above, I would be grateful if you could remove your objection to our 
application to vary our premises licence. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me on 01491 652339 should you wish to discuss this 
matter further. 
 
Many thanks and best regards 
Anna  
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 3

mailto:cholseycdt@gmail.com


Page 34

Agenda Item 3



Page 35

Agenda Item 3



Page 36

Agenda Item 3



Page 37

Agenda Item 3



Page 38

Agenda Item 3



Page 39

Agenda Item 3



Page 40

Agenda Item 3



Page 41

Agenda Item 3



Page 42

Agenda Item 3



Page 43

Agenda Item 3



Page 44

Agenda Item 3



Page 45

Agenda Item 3



Page 46

Agenda Item 3



Page 47

Agenda Item 3


	Agenda
	2 Procedure
	3 Application for a variation of a premises licence for The Great Hall, Fair Mile, Cholsey, Wallingford, OX10 9GW
	Great Hall Appendix 1
	Great Hall Appendix 2
	Great Hall Appendix 3
	Great Hall Appendix 4




